Indiana Election Commission Minutes

March 25, 2020

Members Present: Paul Okeson, Chairman of the Indiana Election Commission (“Commission”); S.
Anthony Long, Vice Chairman of the Commission; Suzannah Wilson Overholt, member; Zachary E. Klutz,
member.

Members Absent: n/a

Staff Attending: Angela M. Nussmeyer, Co-Director of the Election Division; J. Bradley King, Co-Director
of the Indiana Election Division, Valerie Warycha, Co-General Counsel of the Election Division; Matthew
Kochevar, Co-General Counsel of the Election Division

Others Attending: Members of the public
1. Call to Order:

The chair called the March 25, 2020 meeting of the Commission to order at 10:00 a.m. EST online via a
Zoom virtual meeting room that was moderated by Stewart Richardson and Associates.

2. Transaction of Commission Business:

The Commission proceeded to transact business set forth in the Transcript of the Proceedings for this
meeting prepared by Maria Collier of Stewart Richardson and Associates, which is incorporated by
reference into these minutes.

The Commission adjourned its meeting at 10:23 a.m. EST.

Respectfully submitted,
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J. Bradley King Angela M. Nussmeyer
Co-Director Co-Director
APPROVED:

Paul Okeson, Chairman
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APPEARANCES
I NDI ANA ELECTI ON COWM SSI ON:
Paul Ckeson - Chairnman
S. Anthony Long - Vice Chairman
Suzannah Wl son Overholt - Menber
Zachary E. Klutz - Menber

| NDI ANA ELECTI ON DI VI SI ON STAFF:
J. Bradley King - Co-Director
Angela M Nussneyer - Co-Director
Mat t hew Kochevar - Co- Counsel

Val eri e Warycha - Co- Counsel
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CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Okay. Indiana El ection
Comm ssion Public Session. This is Wdnesday,
March 25, 2020, 10:00 a.m | call to order the
meeting, the determ nation of a quorum present.
| ' m Chai rman Paul Ckeson. Along with ne are Vice
Chai rman Ant hony Long, Comm ssion Menber Suzannah
W1 son Overholt, and Conm ssi on Menber Zachary
Kl ut z.

| believe we al so have online the |Indiana
El ection Division staff, Co-Director Brad King and
Co-Director Angi e Nussneyer along with Co-General
Counsel s Matt hew Kochevar and Val eri e Warycha.

| al so recogni ze that we have our court
reporter from Stewart Ri chardson Deposition
Services, Maria Collier.

And before we continue on, obviously this is a
different forum W' ve not done this before, at
| east not in ny tenure as chair, so a couple of
ground rul es here.

Just like in a public neeting, | want to
rem nd everyone on behalf of our court reporter
that, when you junp in, you need to identify
yourself by first and | ast nane and spell that out
for her. There mght be a little bit of lag tine

there for her, so she's going to want to catch up.
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| believe she's going to | eave herself unnuted, so
pl ease pay attention, if she junps in and needs to
clarify sonething for the record, that you yield to
her. Also, let's just try to keep the traffic

| anes one way only and one person speaking at a
time so that we can clearly get this on the record
and hear each other well.

Gven that this is a virtual neeting which is
open to the public, everyone listening will be
muted to avoi d those background and noi se issues
ot herwi se so we can conduct an orderly neeting, and
only when you're recogni zed by the chair will you
be speaki ng.

Before we get to the business of the day, 1'd
just like to offer a right of personal privilege
and make a few coments, and |I'I|l offer the same to
my counterpart, M. Long.

Qoviously, we're in unprecedented territory.
W face a lot of challenges, and | just want to say
how conforted | amin seeing both major political
parties cone together, find sone consensus, join in
conmuni cation to the El ection Conm ssion together.
There's a ot to be mndful of and to think through
during these tunultuous tines, but to know that the

parties can largely set aside any differences and
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try to do what's best for Hoosier voters in

agreenent, | think, is -- well, Indiana is an

exceptional place for that purpose. And we've

al ways been able to cone together and rise above,

and | just wanted to acknow edge that, especially

Wi th respect to Chairman Zody and Chai rman Hupfer

and just working together to put their differences

aside so that we could find sonme common ground.
And, Vice Chairman Long, if you'd like to

of fer any opening comrent, |'d certainly offer you

t hat opportunity before we nove on.

VI CE CHAIRMAN LONG | appreciate that very
much, M. Chairman. | would echo your comments and
observations. | think the thing that has heartened

nme as nuch as anything in this neasure is there
were certain founded | egal positions that each side
had taken that were contrary. W were abl e,
t hrough our representatives, to allow those
positions to be respected that were not concedi ng,
nei t her side conceding their position as to who has
the authority relative to this.

| think you're aware that the Denocrats had
taken the position that this is a jurisdictional
I ssue that should be resolved by this body, the

El ecti on Conm ssion. The Governor and, of course,
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his staff and | egal advisers believe that the
authority rests with him and we are respectful of
t hat position.

| think the thing that is nost heartening is
we are able to say to you today that we're not
asking you or the Governor or the Secretary of
State to concede the correctness of our position or
that we're conceding the correctness of their
positions, but that we really recogni ze that, if
all of us reach an agreenent on the sane goal,
which | feel certain we wll here today, that we've
acconpl i shed the bigger, broader purpose of serving
the citizens of our state.

| think there's a letter before you from Karen
Cel estino Horseman fromthe party. At sone point
we'll ask that that be considered a part of the
record.

We're voting and noving forward, then, today
wi th the understanding that we believe that the
Governor is duly elected executive of the State and
that he has entered an executive order relative to
the conduct of the primary election. W believe
that the Conm ssion will do a simlar order today.
And between the two of us, I'"'msure, if one has to

be right and the other one wong, we're going to
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acconplish what the citizens are entitled to.

Qoviously the record would reflect that the
Comm ssion is an appoi nted, bipartisan, four-nenber
body appoi nted by the Governor charged with the
adm nistration of the election |laws. W believe
that the El ection Conm ssion and by our action
today are exhibiting we have the power, after
finding an energency woul d make it inpossible and
unreasonabl e for persons to performthe duties or
file docunents specified in the Election Code, to
extend the deadlines for that, and we can all
acconplish the goal of having an orderly el ection.

W believe and recognize with respect to the
role of the Secretary of State, as identified as
the state's chief election officer and el ection
official, has duties that are prescribed and the
limtation of the duties and responsibilities as by
t he code.

We think that -- and | would agree with you.
| have the advantage of being a nenber of this body
for several years, and this is unprecedented. This
Is an exanple, | believe, for all that have been
maybe critical of the even split of the partisan
nmenbership on this body, that we traditionally rise

above partisan concerns and are able to acconplish
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t he peopl e' s busi ness.

| amvery pleased and | applaud, |ike you did,
the chairman, both of the state parties. | applaud
and | thank the Governor and his staff and the
Secretary and her staff. And | offer sincere
appreciation to the Division staff for all the
tireless efforts that they have put in to make this
work. This has been truly a bipartisan operati on,
and |"mproud to be a part of it here today.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  They' ve all been worki ng
around the clock. Thank you for that.

Movi ng on, | request that the Election
Di vi sion co-counsel confirmthat the public neeting
has been notified properly.

MS. WARYCHA: This is Valerie, V-a-l-e-r-i-e,
| ast nane Wa-r-y-c-h-a. The neeting was posted
online at 3:00 p.m, approxinmately, yesterday to
| et people know how to do Zoom And then we al so
posted a hard copy notice outside the Election
Division and the Secretary of State's Ofice. And
in addition, we sent notice to the nedia.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

Co- counsel Kochevar, do you have anything to
add?

MR. KOCHEVAR M. Chairman, Matthew Kochevar,
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Ma-t-t-h-e-w, Kochevar, K-o0-c-h-e-v-a-r,
co-general counsel. No, | have nothing to add on
this point.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Ckay. Thank you.

Moving on, Item 3, Order 2020-37. The
El ection Conmm ssion is neeting today to di scuss an
order and vote on an order that will allow the
June 2, 2020, primary election to be conducted in
the nost orderly and accessi bl e fashi on possible
based on what we know today.

| nove to adopt Order 2020-37, which has been
posted on the El ection Comm ssion web page, can be
found on the Secretary of State's site, and
previously distributed to the Comm ssi on nenbers.
For purposes of discussion, is there a second to
t hat notion?

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG M. Chairman, Ant hony
Long, and | woul d second that notion.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you, M. Long.

This order addresses many issues, as we've
been di scussing, arising out of the Governor's
order to suspend the statute setting the date of
the primary as May 5, 2020, and rescheduling that
el ection to June 2, 2020. Order 2020-37 addresses

the followi ng subjects related to the reschedul ed
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primary election. | wll read through these for
t he record.

Briefly, Section 1 and 2, this order applies
to the entire state of Indiana and to everyone who
has a responsibility to performa duty related to
the primary or the right to file a docunent rel ated
to that election.

Section 3 noves all dates by 28 days.

Section 4 avoids reprinting ballots and ot her
forns that have the May 5, 2020, date.

Section 5 allows everyone to cast an absentee
bal |l ot by mail w thout having a specific reason to
do so.

Section 6 grandfathers applications already
received for an absentee ballot. It should not
state an excuse pernmitting the person to vote by
mail. This section also directs the Election
Division to work with the Secretary of State to
devel op an online application for the upcom ng
primary, indianavoters.com if possible.

Section 7 permts county election boards to
conduct neetings electronically rather than in
person, just as we are doing so today. This
section also permts county el ection boards nore

efficiency in review ng an absentee ball ot
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appl i cation.

Section 8 encourages counties to appoi nt
nmedi cal professionals to act as traveling absentee
boards to help voters confined to nedical
facilities to cast a ballot.

Section 9 provides special procedures for
voters who are unable to physically mark and return
their ballots.

Section 10 permts famly nenbers and
caregivers of a confined voter to personally
deliver and return a ballot on their behalf.

Section 11 provides flexibility to the county
clerks regarding the |ocation of the clerk's office
for voting purposes.

Sections 12 and 13 allow county el ection
boards to consolidate voting | ocations and vote
center sites and to take spacing neasuring to
ensure the safety of all voters.

Section 14 | oosens restrictions on students
who wi sh to serve as poll workers or absentee board
menber s.

Section 15 allows county el ection boards to
begi n expeditiously counting ballots at 6:00 a.m
on el ection day.

Section 16 advises county el ection boards that
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el ection results nust be determned by 3:00 p.m on
June 12t h.

Section 17 specifies that the El ection
Comm ssion will neet on April 22nd, at 10:00 a.m,
to discuss noving to a vote by mail election if
necessitated by the public health crisis and
address any concerns related to conducti ng
political party conventions.

And Section 18, this order is effective
i medi ately upon its passage.

Wth that, I will recognize ny coll eagues on
the board for any discussion.

(No response.)

Heari ng none -- yes. Please go ahead. Sorry.

VI CE CHAIRVAN LONG  One of the things that --
| didn't want to capitalize on the speaking here
today but afford other nenbers an opportunity to
addr ess.

One of the things that | have observed and
tried to be very cogni zant of through this is that
we have not created sonething that will have
uni nt ended consequences. | applaud the fact that
we are going to have neetings on April 22nd -- or a
hearing actually on April 22nd.

And there are sone issues that have been
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rai sed by entities such as, well, the Indiana
Citizen. | had the pleasure to speak with ny good
friend Bill Mreau yesterday about the concerns

t hey had and was happy to report that, with his
I nterest and concern, we were able -- the new order
addresses their biggest concern.

W have received communi cati ons from
third-party candidates that | think need to be duly
addressed and considered to nake sure we're not
hanpering themin any form or fashion.

And we have received conmmunication fromthe
American Council of the Blind in Indiana that has
pronpt ed anot her review and thought on the issues
of our citizen voters that have disabilities and
need sone accommodations that we can deal wth.

And | feel we will be able to recognize if we have
created sone consequences that naybe have not been
fully addressed and be able to work with them and

deal with them on the 22nd.

But | believe that the platformthat we have
brought before the Conm ssion here today in the
formof this order is a trenendous step forward to
an orderly novenent of the election and the ability
to have a mail -in-type voting procedure that is

effectively admnistered. | think we can |earn
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fromthat. W'I|l get an opportunity to see how
well the mail-in systemworks and what problens it
W ll create, and I'msure there will be sonme. But

if we have a rollout on this one that's been
necessitated by conditions that are certainly
outside of all of our controls, that we're going to
at | east have an opportunity to test the efficiency
and efficacy of this in the future.

So ny position on this matter, and | want to
make it very clear, that wwth the ability to go
back and | ook at any shortcom ngs or consequences
that we may have inadvertently created here, that
this is areal good step, and |I'm proud to have
been a part of this bipartisan effort.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON: Thank you, Vice Chairnman
Long. | appreciate that.

Any ot hers?

MR KLUTZ: M. Chairman, if | may.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  The Chair recogni zes Zach
Kl ut z.

MR, KLUTZ: Sorry, M. Chairman. |f | may, |
woul d just like to echo Chairman Long's comments.
Let me just say this: Mowving an election is
clearly not as sinple as just saying it's going

fromMay 5th to June 2nd. And | really would Iike
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to thank the Election Division staff, both sides of
the aisle, Secretary of State Connie Lawson and her
office. This is a conprehensive order. | support

the order. And it's as conprehensive as possibl e,

| think, to ensure the nost voter turnout while

al so protecting the health of the voters generally.

W have received comments, sone comments from
interested parties, including election
adm nistrators. And | encourage those el ection
adm nistrators and other interested parties on the
line today to continue those conmments comng in.
We're neeting again April 22nd, so we'll certainly
have the opportunity to, between now and then,
revi ew your conments.

And | know changi ng an el ection date and al so
going to how an election is admnistered in terns
of no-fault absentee creates chall enges and
requi res changes, no different, though, than every
ot her facet of society right nowthat is having to
change how they operate and how they conduct or are
operating business. So | ask the el ection
adm ni strators, keep the comments com ng. Be
patient. Be flexible. Be open-m nded. W
understand that these changes w || cause

difficulties, but difficulties are being faced
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ever ywher e.

So that's ny comment, and, again, | do support
this order.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

Any ot her di scussion?

(No response.)

Heari ng none, we have a notion and a second.
Al those in favor signify by stating your nane.
W'll do aroll call vote, if that's okay.

"Il start with you, Vice Chairman Long.

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  Am | unnut ed?

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: | can hear you.

VI CE CHAIRMAN LONG  You're aware |'m wat chi ng
this on two venues.

| vote for the notion and to approve the
or der.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Ckay. Commi ssion Menber
Kl ut z.

MR KLUTZ: M. Chairman, | vote in favor.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Commi ssi on Menber Suzannah
W1l son Overholt.

M5. OVERHOLT: | vote in favor of the order.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  As Chair, | vote in favor of
my own order, so we have a unani nous decision to

pass the order.
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| s there consent by the Conm ssion nenbers for
the Election Division staff to sign this order with
their signature stanps?

VI CE CHAIRMAN LONG | give ny consent.

M5. OVERHOLT: | give ny consent.

MR KLUTZ: | give ny consent as well.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you. And as it's been
said in sone of the comments section, | would Iike
to acknowl edge that we've received sone requests
for input fromthe public, and sone of them have
been nentioned. |1'll just go through the |ist that
|"'maware of. There may be others, so forgive ne.
But should you be interested in seeing this
comentary or desire to input, | would refer you to
the Election Division staff.

But in no particular order, | know we've heard
fromthe Indiana G een Party, the Anerican
Federation for the Blind, the Indiana D sability
Ri ghts Foundati on, the Indiana Denobcratic party,
the Indiana Ctizen, and the Ti ppecanoe County
board and election staff. And there may be others,
but, again, we will refer you to the Election
Di vision to get access to that infornmation.

As Vice Chairman Long noted, we are neeting

again April 22nd, so we wel cone any conments from
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the public. If you'd like to submt a comment to
the El ection Comm ssion, please submt your
coments in witing to elections -- that's
e-l-e-c-t-i-0-n-s -- @ec.in.gov by April 10, 2020.
This will give the Comm ssion tine to review any
and all comments prior to that neeting on the 22nd.

Wth that, | believe we've concluded business
for today. Do | have a notion --

M5. OVERHOLT: M. Chairnman?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: M. Chairman, this is Suzannah
Overholt. Prior to adjourning, | was wondering if
we coul d di scuss sone possible issues for
consideration at the April 22nd neeting or is that
sonet hing we need to defer and have the division
staff contenplate those prior to that neeting?

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. It's the latter,

Comm ssioner Overholt. | appreciate that, but yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: Ckay.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON: Do | have a notion for the
| ndi ana El ecti on Conm ssion to adjourn?

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  So noved.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I's there a second?

MR. KLUTZ: Second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All those in favor?
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THE COWM SSI ON:  Aye.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:. The "ayes" have it, and the
neeting is adjourned. Thank you all for your
participation today.

(The I ndiana El ection Conm ssion Public

Session was adjourned at 10:23 a.m)
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STATE OF | NDI ANA
COUNTY OF HAM LTON

I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
f oregoi ng public session was taken at the tinme and
pl ace heretofore nentioned between 10: 00 a.m and
10: 23 a. m;

That said public session was taken down in
st enograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
under ny direction; and that the typewitten
transcript is a true record of the public session;

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 26th day of
Mar ch, 2020.

Sy Ud Cﬂk}»
a4, N
Maria W Collier
NOTARY PUBLIC SEAL

STATEOF INDIANA
Commission No. NPOSS3933
My Commizsion Expires Dec. 5, 2024

My Comm ssi on expires:
Decenber 5, 2024

Job No. 152213
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Indiana Election



      2     Commission Public Session.  This is Wednesday,



      3     March 25, 2020, 10:00 a.m.  I call to order the



      4     meeting, the determination of a quorum present.



      5     I'm Chairman Paul Okeson.  Along with me are Vice



      6     Chairman Anthony Long, Commission Member Suzannah



      7     Wilson Overholt, and Commission Member Zachary



      8     Klutz.



      9          I believe we also have online the Indiana



     10     Election Division staff, Co-Director Brad King and



     11     Co-Director Angie Nussmeyer along with Co-General



     12     Counsels Matthew Kochevar and Valerie Warycha.



     13          I also recognize that we have our court



     14     reporter from Stewart Richardson Deposition



     15     Services, Maria Collier.



     16          And before we continue on, obviously this is a



     17     different forum.  We've not done this before, at



     18     least not in my tenure as chair, so a couple of



     19     ground rules here.



     20          Just like in a public meeting, I want to



     21     remind everyone on behalf of our court reporter



     22     that, when you jump in, you need to identify



     23     yourself by first and last name and spell that out



     24     for her.  There might be a little bit of lag time



     25     there for her, so she's going to want to catch up.
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      1     I believe she's going to leave herself unmuted, so



      2     please pay attention, if she jumps in and needs to



      3     clarify something for the record, that you yield to



      4     her.  Also, let's just try to keep the traffic



      5     lanes one way only and one person speaking at a



      6     time so that we can clearly get this on the record



      7     and hear each other well.



      8          Given that this is a virtual meeting which is



      9     open to the public, everyone listening will be



     10     muted to avoid those background and noise issues



     11     otherwise so we can conduct an orderly meeting, and



     12     only when you're recognized by the chair will you



     13     be speaking.



     14          Before we get to the business of the day, I'd



     15     just like to offer a right of personal privilege



     16     and make a few comments, and I'll offer the same to



     17     my counterpart, Mr. Long.



     18          Obviously, we're in unprecedented territory.



     19     We face a lot of challenges, and I just want to say



     20     how comforted I am in seeing both major political



     21     parties come together, find some consensus, join in



     22     communication to the Election Commission together.



     23     There's a lot to be mindful of and to think through



     24     during these tumultuous times, but to know that the



     25     parties can largely set aside any differences and
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      1     try to do what's best for Hoosier voters in



      2     agreement, I think, is -- well, Indiana is an



      3     exceptional place for that purpose.  And we've



      4     always been able to come together and rise above,



      5     and I just wanted to acknowledge that, especially



      6     with respect to Chairman Zody and Chairman Hupfer



      7     and just working together to put their differences



      8     aside so that we could find some common ground.



      9          And, Vice Chairman Long, if you'd like to



     10     offer any opening comment, I'd certainly offer you



     11     that opportunity before we move on.



     12          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I appreciate that very



     13     much, Mr. Chairman.  I would echo your comments and



     14     observations.  I think the thing that has heartened



     15     me as much as anything in this measure is there



     16     were certain founded legal positions that each side



     17     had taken that were contrary.  We were able,



     18     through our representatives, to allow those



     19     positions to be respected that were not conceding,



     20     neither side conceding their position as to who has



     21     the authority relative to this.



     22          I think you're aware that the Democrats had



     23     taken the position that this is a jurisdictional



     24     issue that should be resolved by this body, the



     25     Election Commission.  The Governor and, of course,
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      1     his staff and legal advisers believe that the



      2     authority rests with him, and we are respectful of



      3     that position.



      4          I think the thing that is most heartening is



      5     we are able to say to you today that we're not



      6     asking you or the Governor or the Secretary of



      7     State to concede the correctness of our position or



      8     that we're conceding the correctness of their



      9     positions, but that we really recognize that, if



     10     all of us reach an agreement on the same goal,



     11     which I feel certain we will here today, that we've



     12     accomplished the bigger, broader purpose of serving



     13     the citizens of our state.



     14          I think there's a letter before you from Karen



     15     Celestino Horseman from the party.  At some point



     16     we'll ask that that be considered a part of the



     17     record.



     18          We're voting and moving forward, then, today



     19     with the understanding that we believe that the



     20     Governor is duly elected executive of the State and



     21     that he has entered an executive order relative to



     22     the conduct of the primary election.  We believe



     23     that the Commission will do a similar order today.



     24     And between the two of us, I'm sure, if one has to



     25     be right and the other one wrong, we're going to
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      1     accomplish what the citizens are entitled to.



      2          Obviously the record would reflect that the



      3     Commission is an appointed, bipartisan, four-member



      4     body appointed by the Governor charged with the



      5     administration of the election laws.  We believe



      6     that the Election Commission and by our action



      7     today are exhibiting we have the power, after



      8     finding an emergency would make it impossible and



      9     unreasonable for persons to perform the duties or



     10     file documents specified in the Election Code, to



     11     extend the deadlines for that, and we can all



     12     accomplish the goal of having an orderly election.



     13          We believe and recognize with respect to the



     14     role of the Secretary of State, as identified as



     15     the state's chief election officer and election



     16     official, has duties that are prescribed and the



     17     limitation of the duties and responsibilities as by



     18     the code.



     19          We think that -- and I would agree with you.



     20     I have the advantage of being a member of this body



     21     for several years, and this is unprecedented.  This



     22     is an example, I believe, for all that have been



     23     maybe critical of the even split of the partisan



     24     membership on this body, that we traditionally rise



     25     above partisan concerns and are able to accomplish
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      1     the people's business.



      2          I am very pleased and I applaud, like you did,



      3     the chairman, both of the state parties.  I applaud



      4     and I thank the Governor and his staff and the



      5     Secretary and her staff.  And I offer sincere



      6     appreciation to the Division staff for all the



      7     tireless efforts that they have put in to make this



      8     work.  This has been truly a bipartisan operation,



      9     and I'm proud to be a part of it here today.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They've all been working



     11     around the clock.  Thank you for that.



     12          Moving on, I request that the Election



     13     Division co-counsel confirm that the public meeting



     14     has been notified properly.



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  This is Valerie, V-a-l-e-r-i-e,



     16     last name W-a-r-y-c-h-a.  The meeting was posted



     17     online at 3:00 p.m., approximately, yesterday to



     18     let people know how to do Zoom.  And then we also



     19     posted a hard copy notice outside the Election



     20     Division and the Secretary of State's Office.  And



     21     in addition, we sent notice to the media.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     23          Co-counsel Kochevar, do you have anything to



     24     add?



     25          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Mr. Chairman, Matthew Kochevar,
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      1     M-a-t-t-h-e-w, Kochevar, K-o-c-h-e-v-a-r,



      2     co-general counsel.  No, I have nothing to add on



      3     this point.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      5          Moving on, Item 3, Order 2020-37.  The



      6     Election Commission is meeting today to discuss an



      7     order and vote on an order that will allow the



      8     June 2, 2020, primary election to be conducted in



      9     the most orderly and accessible fashion possible



     10     based on what we know today.



     11          I move to adopt Order 2020-37, which has been



     12     posted on the Election Commission web page, can be



     13     found on the Secretary of State's site, and



     14     previously distributed to the Commission members.



     15     For purposes of discussion, is there a second to



     16     that motion?



     17          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Mr. Chairman, Anthony



     18     Long, and I would second that motion.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Long.



     20          This order addresses many issues, as we've



     21     been discussing, arising out of the Governor's



     22     order to suspend the statute setting the date of



     23     the primary as May 5, 2020, and rescheduling that



     24     election to June 2, 2020.  Order 2020-37 addresses



     25     the following subjects related to the rescheduled
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      1     primary election.  I will read through these for



      2     the record.



      3          Briefly, Section 1 and 2, this order applies



      4     to the entire state of Indiana and to everyone who



      5     has a responsibility to perform a duty related to



      6     the primary or the right to file a document related



      7     to that election.



      8          Section 3 moves all dates by 28 days.



      9          Section 4 avoids reprinting ballots and other



     10     forms that have the May 5, 2020, date.



     11          Section 5 allows everyone to cast an absentee



     12     ballot by mail without having a specific reason to



     13     do so.



     14          Section 6 grandfathers applications already



     15     received for an absentee ballot.  It should not



     16     state an excuse permitting the person to vote by



     17     mail.  This section also directs the Election



     18     Division to work with the Secretary of State to



     19     develop an online application for the upcoming



     20     primary, indianavoters.com, if possible.



     21          Section 7 permits county election boards to



     22     conduct meetings electronically rather than in



     23     person, just as we are doing so today.  This



     24     section also permits county election boards more



     25     efficiency in reviewing an absentee ballot
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      1     application.



      2          Section 8 encourages counties to appoint



      3     medical professionals to act as traveling absentee



      4     boards to help voters confined to medical



      5     facilities to cast a ballot.



      6          Section 9 provides special procedures for



      7     voters who are unable to physically mark and return



      8     their ballots.



      9          Section 10 permits family members and



     10     caregivers of a confined voter to personally



     11     deliver and return a ballot on their behalf.



     12          Section 11 provides flexibility to the county



     13     clerks regarding the location of the clerk's office



     14     for voting purposes.



     15          Sections 12 and 13 allow county election



     16     boards to consolidate voting locations and vote



     17     center sites and to take spacing measuring to



     18     ensure the safety of all voters.



     19          Section 14 loosens restrictions on students



     20     who wish to serve as poll workers or absentee board



     21     members.



     22          Section 15 allows county election boards to



     23     begin expeditiously counting ballots at 6:00 a.m.



     24     on election day.



     25          Section 16 advises county election boards that
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      1     election results must be determined by 3:00 p.m. on



      2     June 12th.



      3          Section 17 specifies that the Election



      4     Commission will meet on April 22nd, at 10:00 a.m.,



      5     to discuss moving to a vote by mail election if



      6     necessitated by the public health crisis and



      7     address any concerns related to conducting



      8     political party conventions.



      9          And Section 18, this order is effective



     10     immediately upon its passage.



     11          With that, I will recognize my colleagues on



     12     the board for any discussion.



     13          (No response.)



     14          Hearing none -- yes.  Please go ahead.  Sorry.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  One of the things that --



     16     I didn't want to capitalize on the speaking here



     17     today but afford other members an opportunity to



     18     address.



     19          One of the things that I have observed and



     20     tried to be very cognizant of through this is that



     21     we have not created something that will have



     22     unintended consequences.  I applaud the fact that



     23     we are going to have meetings on April 22nd -- or a



     24     hearing actually on April 22nd.



     25          And there are some issues that have been
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      1     raised by entities such as, well, the Indiana



      2     Citizen.  I had the pleasure to speak with my good



      3     friend Bill Moreau yesterday about the concerns



      4     they had and was happy to report that, with his



      5     interest and concern, we were able -- the new order



      6     addresses their biggest concern.



      7          We have received communications from



      8     third-party candidates that I think need to be duly



      9     addressed and considered to make sure we're not



     10     hampering them in any form or fashion.



     11          And we have received communication from the



     12     American Council of the Blind in Indiana that has



     13     prompted another review and thought on the issues



     14     of our citizen voters that have disabilities and



     15     need some accommodations that we can deal with.



     16     And I feel we will be able to recognize if we have



     17     created some consequences that maybe have not been



     18     fully addressed and be able to work with them and



     19     deal with them on the 22nd.



     20          But I believe that the platform that we have



     21     brought before the Commission here today in the



     22     form of this order is a tremendous step forward to



     23     an orderly movement of the election and the ability



     24     to have a mail-in-type voting procedure that is



     25     effectively administered.  I think we can learn
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      1     from that.  We'll get an opportunity to see how



      2     well the mail-in system works and what problems it



      3     will create, and I'm sure there will be some.  But



      4     if we have a rollout on this one that's been



      5     necessitated by conditions that are certainly



      6     outside of all of our controls, that we're going to



      7     at least have an opportunity to test the efficiency



      8     and efficacy of this in the future.



      9          So my position on this matter, and I want to



     10     make it very clear, that with the ability to go



     11     back and look at any shortcomings or consequences



     12     that we may have inadvertently created here, that



     13     this is a real good step, and I'm proud to have



     14     been a part of this bipartisan effort.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Vice Chairman



     16     Long.  I appreciate that.



     17          Any others?



     18          MR. KLUTZ:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The Chair recognizes Zach



     20     Klutz.



     21          MR. KLUTZ:  Sorry, Mr. Chairman.  If I may, I



     22     would just like to echo Chairman Long's comments.



     23     Let me just say this:  Moving an election is



     24     clearly not as simple as just saying it's going



     25     from May 5th to June 2nd.  And I really would like

�



                                                           15



      1     to thank the Election Division staff, both sides of



      2     the aisle, Secretary of State Connie Lawson and her



      3     office.  This is a comprehensive order.  I support



      4     the order.  And it's as comprehensive as possible,



      5     I think, to ensure the most voter turnout while



      6     also protecting the health of the voters generally.



      7          We have received comments, some comments from



      8     interested parties, including election



      9     administrators.  And I encourage those election



     10     administrators and other interested parties on the



     11     line today to continue those comments coming in.



     12     We're meeting again April 22nd, so we'll certainly



     13     have the opportunity to, between now and then,



     14     review your comments.



     15          And I know changing an election date and also



     16     going to how an election is administered in terms



     17     of no-fault absentee creates challenges and



     18     requires changes, no different, though, than every



     19     other facet of society right now that is having to



     20     change how they operate and how they conduct or are



     21     operating business.  So I ask the election



     22     administrators, keep the comments coming.  Be



     23     patient.  Be flexible.  Be open-minded.  We



     24     understand that these changes will cause



     25     difficulties, but difficulties are being faced
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      1     everywhere.



      2          So that's my comment, and, again, I do support



      3     this order.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          Any other discussion?



      6          (No response.)



      7          Hearing none, we have a motion and a second.



      8     All those in favor signify by stating your name.



      9     We'll do a roll call vote, if that's okay.



     10          I'll start with you, Vice Chairman Long.



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Am I unmuted?



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I can hear you.



     13          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  You're aware I'm watching



     14     this on two venues.



     15          I vote for the motion and to approve the



     16     order.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Commission Member



     18     Klutz.



     19          MR. KLUTZ:  Mr. Chairman, I vote in favor.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Commission Member Suzannah



     21     Wilson Overholt.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  I vote in favor of the order.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  As Chair, I vote in favor of



     24     my own order, so we have a unanimous decision to



     25     pass the order.
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      1          Is there consent by the Commission members for



      2     the Election Division staff to sign this order with



      3     their signature stamps?



      4          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I give my consent.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  I give my consent.



      6          MR. KLUTZ:  I give my consent as well.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  And as it's been



      8     said in some of the comments section, I would like



      9     to acknowledge that we've received some requests



     10     for input from the public, and some of them have



     11     been mentioned.  I'll just go through the list that



     12     I'm aware of.  There may be others, so forgive me.



     13     But should you be interested in seeing this



     14     commentary or desire to input, I would refer you to



     15     the Election Division staff.



     16          But in no particular order, I know we've heard



     17     from the Indiana Green Party, the American



     18     Federation for the Blind, the Indiana Disability



     19     Rights Foundation, the Indiana Democratic party,



     20     the Indiana Citizen, and the Tippecanoe County



     21     board and election staff.  And there may be others,



     22     but, again, we will refer you to the Election



     23     Division to get access to that information.



     24          As Vice Chairman Long noted, we are meeting



     25     again April 22nd, so we welcome any comments from
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      1     the public.  If you'd like to submit a comment to



      2     the Election Commission, please submit your



      3     comments in writing to elections -- that's



      4     e-l-e-c-t-i-o-n-s -- @iec.in.gov by April 10, 2020.



      5     This will give the Commission time to review any



      6     and all comments prior to that meeting on the 22nd.



      7          With that, I believe we've concluded business



      8     for today.  Do I have a motion --



      9          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Chairman?



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Chairman, this is Suzannah



     12     Overholt.  Prior to adjourning, I was wondering if



     13     we could discuss some possible issues for



     14     consideration at the April 22nd meeting or is that



     15     something we need to defer and have the division



     16     staff contemplate those prior to that meeting?



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's the latter,



     18     Commissioner Overholt.  I appreciate that, but yes.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do I have a motion for the



     21     Indiana Election Commission to adjourn?



     22          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  So moved.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     24          MR. KLUTZ:  Second.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All those in favor?
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      1          THE COMMISSION:  Aye.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it, and the



      3     meeting is adjourned.  Thank you all for your



      4     participation today.



      5          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      6     Session was adjourned at 10:23 a.m.)



      7
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      9



     10
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     14



     15



     16



     17



     18
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     21



     22



     23



     24



     25
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF HAMILTON



      3          I, Maria W. Collier, a Notary Public in and



      4  for said county and state, do hereby certify that the



      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 10:00 a.m. and



      7  10:23 a.m.;



      8          That said public session was taken down in



      9  stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewriting



     10  under my direction; and that the typewritten



     11  transcript is a true record of the public session;



     12          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     13  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 26th day of



     14  March, 2020.



     15



     16



     17



     18

                           

     19        



     20

         My Commission expires:

     21  December 5, 2024



     22  Job No. 152213
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1 CHAl RVAN CKESON Ckay. I ndiana Hection
2 I'NDI ANA ELECTI ON COVM SSI ON 2 Conmission Public Session. This is Védnesday,
3 PUBLI C SESSI ON 3 Mrch 25, 2020, 10:00 a.m | call to order the
4 4 neeting, the determnation of a quorum present.
2 5 I'mCairman Paul Ckeson. Along with me are Vice
; Conducted on:  March 25, 2020 6 Chairman Anthony Long, Conmi ssion Menber Suzannah
8 7 Wlson Qverholt, and Conmission Menber Zachary
9 8 Kutz.
10 9 | believe we al so have online the Indiana
11  Conducted Renotely via Videoconference 10 Bection Dvision staff, Co-Director Brad King and
12 11  Co-Director Angie Nussneyer along wth Co-General
13 12 Counsel s Matthew Kochevar and Val erie Vérycha.
14 13 | al so recogni ze that we have our court
15 A Stenographic Record by: 14  reporter fromStewart R chardson Deposition
16 Maria W Collier, RPR CRR 15  Services, Mria Collier.
o 16 And before we continue on, obviously thisis a
ii 17 different forum V¢ ve not done this before, at
20 18 least not in ny tenure as chair, so a couple of
1 19 ground rul es here.
2 20 Just like in a public meeting, | want to
STEWART Rl CHARDSON DEPOS! TI ON SERVI CES 21 remnd everyone on behal f of our court reporter
23 Regi stered Prof essional Reporters 22 that, when you junp in, you need to identify
One | ndi ana Square 23 yourself by first and last name and spel| that out
24 Suite 2425 24 for her. There night be alittle bit of lag tinme
I'ndi anapolis, IN 46204 25 there for her, so she's going to want to catch up.
25 (317) 237- 3773
Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 1 | believe she's going to | eave hersel f unmited, so
2 I NDIANA ELECTI ON COMM SSI ON. 2 please pay attention, if she junps in and needs to
3 Paul Okeson - Chairman 3 clarify something for the record, that you yield to
4 S. Anthony Long - Vice Chairman 4 her. Aso, let's just try to keep the traffic
5 Suzannah Wilson Overholt - Menber 5 lanes one way only and one person speaking at a
6 Zachary E. Klutz - Menber 6 tine sothat we can clearly get this on the record
7 7 and hear each other well.
8 | NDIANA ELECTI ON DI VI SI ON STAFF: 8 Gven that this is avirtual neeting which is
9 J. Bradley King - Co-Director 9 open to the public, everyone listening will be
10 Angela M Nussmeyer - Co-Director 10 muted to avoid those background and noi se i ssues
11 Matthew Kochevar - Co- Counsel 11  otherwise so we can conduct an orderly neeting, and
12 Valerie Varycha - Co-Counsel 12 only when you' re recogni zed by the chair will you
13 13 be speaki ng.
14 14 Before we get to the business of the day, |'d
15 15 just like to offer a right of personal privilege
16 16 and make a few comments, and |'Il offer the same to
17 17 ny counterpart, M. Long.
18 18 Cbviously, we're in unprecedented territory.
19 19 W face a lot of challenges, and | just want to say
20 20 how conforted | amin seeing both major political
21 21 parties cone together, find some consensus, join in
22 22 comunication to the Hection Conmission together.
23 23 There's alot to be mndful of and to think through
24 24 during these tumultuous tines, but to know that the
25 25 parties can largely set aside any differences and
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Page 5 Page 7
1 try to do what's best for Hoosier voters in 1 acconplish what the citizens are entitled to.
2 agreenent, | think, is -- well, Indianais an 2 Qoviously the record woul d reflect that the
3 exceptional place for that purpose. And we've 3 Commission is an appointed, bipartisan, four-nenber
4 always been able to cone together and rise above, 4 body appointed by the Governor charged with the
5 and | just wanted to acknow edge that, especially 5 adninistration of the election laws. W believe
6 with respect to Chairman Zody and Chairman Hipfer 6 that the Hection Cormission and by our action
7 and just working together to put their differences 7 today are exhibiting we have the power, after
8 aside so that we could find some common ground. 8 finding an energency woul d make it inpossible and
9 And, Vice Chairman Long, if you'd like to 9 unreasonabl e for persons to performthe duties or
10 offer any opening comment, |'d certainly offer you |10 file docunents specified in the Hection Code, to
11 that opportunity before we nove on. 11 extend the deadlines for that, and we can all
12 VICE CHALRVAN LONG | appreciate that very 12 acconplish the goal of having an orderly el ection.
13 rmuch, M. Chairman. | would echo your coments and | 13 V¢ believe and recognize with respect to the
14  observations. | think the thing that has heartened | 14 role of the Secretary of State, as identified as
15 e as much as anything in this neasure is there 15 the state's chief election officer and el ection
16 were certain founded | egal positions that each side |16 official, has duties that are prescribed and the
17 had taken that were contrary. & were able, 17 linmtation of the duties and responsibilities as by
18 through our representatives, to allow those 18 the code.
19 positions to be respected that were not conceding, |19 W think that -- and | would agree with you.
20 neither side conceding their position as to who has |20 | have the advantage of being a nenber of this body
21 the authority relative to this. 21 for several years, and this is unprecedented. This
22 | think you're aware that the Denocrats had 22 is an exanple, | believe, for all that have been
23 taken the position that this is a jurisdictional 23 nmaybe critical of the even split of the partisan
24 issue that should be resolved by this body, the 24 nenbership on this body, that we traditionally rise
25 Hection Coomssion. The Governor and, of course, 25 above partisan concerns and are able to acconplish
Page 6 Page 8
1 his staff and | egal advisers believe that the 1 the peopl e's business.
2 authority rests with him and we are respectful of 2 | amvery pleased and | applaud, like you did,
3 that position. 3 the chairman, both of the state parties. | applaud
4 | think the thing that is nost heartening is 4 and | thank the Governor and his staff and the
5 we are able to say to you today that we're not 5 Secretary and her staff. And | offer sincere
6 asking you or the Governor or the Secretary of 6 appreciation to the Dvision staff for all the
7 State to concede the correctness of our positionor | 7 tireless efforts that they have put in to make this
8 that we're conceding the correctness of their 8 work. This has been truly a bipartisan operation,
9 positions, but that we really recognize that, if 9 and I'mproud to be a part of it here today.
10 all of us reach an agreerent on the sane goal , 10 CHA RVAN CKESON They' ve al | been wor ki ng
11  which | feel certain we will here today, that we've | 11 around the clock. Thank you for that.
12 acconplished the bigger, broader purpose of serving |12 Moving on, | request that the Hection
13 the citizens of our state. 13 Division co-counsel confirmthat the public neeting
14 I think there's a letter before you fromKaren | 14  has been notified properly.
15 Celestino Horseman fromthe party. At sonme point 15 MB. WARYCHA: This is Valerie, V-a-l-e-r-i-eg,
16  we'll ask that that be considered a part of the 16 last name Wa-r-y-c-h-a. The neeting was posted
17  record. 17 online at 3:00 p.m, approximately, yesterday to
18 W' re voting and noving forward, then, today 18 let people know howto do Zoom And then we al so
19 with the understanding that we believe that the 19 posted a hard copy notice outside the Hection
20 Qovernor is duly elected executive of the State and |20 Division and the Secretary of State's (ffice. And
21 that he has entered an executive order relative to |21 in addition, we sent notice to the nedia.
22 the conduct of the prinary election. W believe 22 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Thank you.
23 that the Coonmission will do a simlar order today. |23 Co- counsel Kochevar, do you have anything to
24  And between the two of us, |'msure, if one has to |24 add?
25 beright and the other one wong, we're going to 25 MR KOOHEVAR M. Chairnan, Matthew Kochevar,
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Page 9 Page 11
1 Ma-t-t-h-e-w, Kochevar, K-o-c-h-e-v-a-r, 1 application.
2 co-general counsel. No, | have nothing to add on 2 Section 8 encourages counties to appoint
3 this point. 3 nedical professionals to act as traveling absentee
4 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Ckay.  Thank you. 4 Dboards to help voters confined to medical
5 Moving on, Item3, Qder 2020-37. The 5 facilities to cast a ballot.
6 Hection Conmssion is neeting today to discuss an 6 Section 9 provides special procedures for
7 order and vote on an order that will allowthe 7 voters who are unable to physically mark and return
8 June 2, 2020, primary election to be conducted in 8 their ballots.
9 the nost orderly and accessibl e fashion possible 9 Section 10 pernits famly nenbers and
10 based on what we know today. 10 caregivers of a confined voter to personally
11 | nove to adopt Order 2020-37, which has been |11 deliver and return a ballot on their behal f.
12 posted on the Hection Conm ssion web page, can be |12 Section 11 provides flexibility to the county
13  found on the Secretary of State's site, and 13 clerks regarding the location of the clerk's office
14 previously distributed to the Conm ssion nenbers. 14 for voting purposes.
15 For purposes of discussion, is there a second to 15 Sections 12 and 13 al | ow county el ection
16 that notion? 16  boards to consolidate voting |ocations and vote
17 VICE CHA RVMAN LONG M. Chairman, Ant hony 17 center sites and to take spacing neasuring to
18 Long, and | woul d second that notion. 18 ensure the safety of all voters.
19 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Thank you, M. Long. 19 Section 14 | oosens restrictions on students
20 This order addresses many issues, as we've 20 who wish to serve as poll workers or absentee board
21 been discussing, arising out of the Governor's 21 nenbers.
22 order to suspend the statute setting the date of 22 Section 15 allows county el ection boards to
23  the primary as May 5, 2020, and reschedul i ng that 23 Dbegin expeditiously counting ballots at 6:00 a.m
24 election to June 2, 2020. Qder 2020-37 addresses |24 on election day.
25 the follow ng subjects related to the reschedul ed 25 Section 16 advises county el ection boards that
Page 10 Page 12
1 prinary election. | wll read through these for 1 election results nust be deternined by 3:00 p.m on
2 the record. 2 June 12th.
3 Briefly, Section 1 and 2, this order applies 3 Section 17 specifies that the Hection
4 tothe entire state of Indiana and to everyone who | 4 Conmission will neet on April 22nd, at 10:00 a.m,
5 has aresponsibility to performa duty related to 5 to discuss noving to a vote by mail electionif
6 the primary or the right to file a docunent related | 6 necessitated by the public health crisis and
7 tothat election. 7 address any concerns related to conducting
8 Section 3 noves all dates by 28 days. 8 political party conventions.
9 Section 4 avoids reprinting ballots and ot her 9 And Section 18, this order is effective
10 forns that have the May 5 2020, date. 10 innediately upon its passage.
11 Section 5 all ows everyone to cast an absentee |11 Wth that, | will recognize ny col | eagues on
12 ballot by mail without having a specific reason to |12 the board for any discussion.
13 do so. 13 (No response. )
14 Section 6 grandfathers applications already 14 Hearing none -- yes. Pl ease go ahead. Sorry.
15 received for an absentee ballot. It should not 15 VICE CHA RVMAN LONG  (ne of the things that --
16 state an excuse pernitting the person to vote by 16 | didn't want to capitalize on the speaking here
17 mail. This section also directs the Hection 17 today but afford other menbers an opportunity to
18 Divisionto work with the Secretary of State to 18  address.
19 devel op an online application for the upconing 19 (ne of the things that | have observed and
20 primary, indianavoters.com if possible. 20 tried to be very cognizant of through this is that
21 Section 7 permts county el ection boards to 21 we have not created sonething that will have
22 conduct neetings electronically rather than in 22 unintended consequences. | applaud the fact that
23 person, just as we are doing so today. This 23 we are going to have neetings on April 22nd -- or a
24 section also pernits county el ection boards nore 24 hearing actually on April 22nd.
25 efficiency in review ng an absentee bal | ot 25 And there are sone issues that have been
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1 raised by entities such as, well, the Indiana 1 to thank the Hection Dvision staff, both sides of
2 (tizen. | had the pleasure to speak with ny good 2 the aisle, Secretary of State Connie Lawson and her
3 friend B'll Mreau yesterday about the concerns 3 office. This is a conprehensive order. | support
4 they had and was happy to report that, with his 4 theorder. Andit's as conprehensive as possibl e,
5 interest and concern, we were able -- the neworder | 5 | think, to ensure the most voter turnout while
6 addresses their biggest concern. 6 also protecting the health of the voters generally.
7 \%¢ have recei ved comuni cations from 7 \%¢ have recei ved comments, sone conments from
8 third-party candidates that | think need to be duly | 8 interested parties, including election
9 addressed and considered to make sure we're not 9 admnistrators. And | encourage those el ection
10  hanpering themin any formor fashion. 10 adnministrators and other interested parties on the
11 And we have received communication fromthe 11 line today to continue those comrents comng in.
12 Anerican Council of the Blind in Indiana that has 12 W're neeting again April 22nd, so we'll certainly
13 pronpted another review and thought on the issues 13 have the opportunity to, between now and then,
14 of our citizen voters that have disabilities and 14 review your coments.
15 need sone acconmodati ons that we can deal with. 15 And | know changing an el ection date and al so
16 And | feel we will be able to recognize if we have |16 going to how an election is admnistered in terns
17 created sonme consequences that maybe have not been |17 of no-fault absentee creates chal | enges and
18 fully addressed and be able to work with them and 18 requires changes, no different, though, than every
19 deal with themon the 22nd. 19 other facet of society right nowthat is having to
20 But | believe that the platformthat we have 20 change how they operate and how they conduct or are
21 brought before the Conmission here today in the 21 operating business. So | ask the election
22 formof this order is a tremendous step forward to |22 admnistrators, keep the comments coning. Be
23 an orderly novenent of the election and the ability |23 patient. Be flexible. Be open-ninded. V¢
24 to have a nmail-in-type voting procedure that is 24 understand that these changes will cause
25 effectively admnistered. | think we can |earn 25  difficulties, but difficulties are being faced
Page 14 Page 16
1 fromthat. We'|l get an opportunity to see how 1 everywhere.
2 well the mail-in systemworks and what problens it 2 So that's ny conment, and, again, | do support
3 wll create, and |'msure there will be sone. But 3 this order.
4 if we have a rollout on this one that's been 4 CHA RVAN CKESON Thank  you.
5 necessitated by conditions that are certainly 5 Any ot her discussi on?
6 outside of all of our controls, that we're going to | 6 (No response.)
7 at least have an opportunity to test the efficiency | 7 Hearing none, we have a notion and a second.
8 and efficacy of this in the future. 8 Al those in favor signify by stating your nane.
9 So ny position on this matter, and | want to 9 W'Il doaroll call vote, if that's okay.
10 make it very clear, that with the ability to go 10 I"I'l start with you, Vice Chairnman Long.
11  back and | ook at any shortcomngs or consequences 11 VICE CHALRVAN LONG  Am | unnut ed?
12 that we may have inadvertently created here, that 12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | can hear you.
13 this is areal good step, and |'mproud to have 13 VICE CHA RVAN LONG  You're aware |' mwat chi ng
14 been a part of this bipartisan effort. 14 this on two venues.
15 CHAI RVMAN CKESCN Thank you, Vi ce Chairnan 15 | vote for the notion and to approve the
16 Long. | appreciate that. 16  order.
17 Any ot hers? 17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay.  Conmi ssi on Menber
18 MR KLUTZ M. Chairman, if | may. 18 Kutz.
19 CHAI RMAN CKESON The Chai r recogni zes Zach 19 MR KLUTZ M. Chairnman, | vote in favor.
20 Kutz. 20 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Cormi ssi on Menber  Suzannah
21 MR KLUTZ Sorry, M. Chairman. If | nay, | 21  WIson Overhol t.
22 would just like to echo Chairman Long' s conments. 22 MB. OVERHQLT: | vote in favor of the order.
23 Let nme just say this: Mving an election is 23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN As Chair, | vote in favor of
24 clearly not as sinple as just saying it's going 24 ny own order, so we have a unanimous decision to
25 fromMay 5th to June 2nd. And | really would like |25 pass the order.
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1 I's there consent by the Commission nenbers for | 1 THE COMM SSION: - Aye.
2 the Hection Dvision staff to signthis order with | 2 CHAI RVAN OKESON: ~ The "ayes” have it, and the
3 their signature stanps? 3 neeting is adjourned. Thank you all for your
4 VICE CHA RVAN LONG | give ny consent. 4 participation today.
5 M. O/ERHLT: | give ny consent. 5 (The Indiana El ection Commission Public
6 MR KLUTZ | give ny consent as well. 6  Session was adjourned at 10:23 a.m)
7 CHA RVAN CKESCN Thank you. And as it's been | 7
8 saidin sone of the comments section, | would like | 8
9 to acknow edge that we've received sone requests 9
10 for input fromthe public, and sone of them have 10
11  been nentioned. 1'll just go through the list that |11
12 |'maware of. There may be others, so forgive ne. |12
13 But should you be interested in seeing this 13
14  comentary or desire to input, | would refer you to |14
15 the Hection Dvision staff. 15
16 But in no particular order, | know we've heard | 16
17  fromthe Indiana Geen Party, the American 17
18 Federation for the Blind, the Indiana Dsability 18
19 Rghts Foundation, the Indiana Democratic party, 19
20 the Indiana Gtizen, and the Tippecanoe County 20
21 board and election staff. And there may be others, |21
22 but, again, we will refer you to the Eection 22
23 Division to get access to that information. 23
24 As Vice Chairman Long noted, we are neeting 24
25 again April 22nd, so we wel cone any coments from |25
Page 18 Page 20
1 the public. If you'd like to submt a conmment to 1 STATE OF | NDI ANA
2 the El ection Conmi ssion, please submt your 2 COUNTY OF HAM LTON
3 conments in witing to elections -- that's 3 I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
4 e-l-e-c-t-i-o-n-s -- @ec.in.gov by April 10, 2020. 4 for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
5 This will give the Conmission tine to review any 5 foregoing public session was taken at the tinme and
6 and all comments prior to that meeting on the 22nd. 6 place heretofore nmentioned between 10: 00 a. m and
7 Wth that, | believe we' ve concl uded business 7 10:23 a.m;
8 for today. Do | have a motion -- 8 That said public session was taken down in
9 ME. OVERHOLT: M. Chairman? 9 stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
10 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yes. 10 under ny direction; and that the typewitten
1 V5. OVERHOLT: M. Chairman, this is Suzannah 11 transcript is a true record of the public session;
12 Overholt. Prior to adjourning, | was wondering if 12 ' N WTNESS VHEREGF, | have hereunto set ny
13 we could discuss some possible issues for 13 hand and affixed my notarial seal this 26th day of
14  consideration at the April 22nd neeting or is that i: March,  2020.
iz zf::h:it\:ﬂ need to defer- and have the di YISI on 16 qu}ou m C&h
npl ate those prior to that neeting? 17 —
17 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. It's the latter, 18 e EacE
18 Conmi ssi oner Overholt. | appreciate that, but yes. 19
19 MS. OVERHOLT: Ckay. 20
20 CHAI RVAN OKESON: Do | have a notion for the My Commi ssion expires:
21 I ndi ana El ecti on Conmi ssion to adjourn? 21 Decenber 5, 2024
22 VI CE CHAIRVAN LONG  So noved. 22 Job No. 152213
23 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I's there a second? 23
24 MR, KLUTZ: Second. 24
25 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  All those in favor? 25
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Indiana Election



      2     Commission Public Session.  This is Wednesday,



      3     March 25, 2020, 10:00 a.m.  I call to order the



      4     meeting, the determination of a quorum present.



      5     I'm Chairman Paul Okeson.  Along with me are Vice



      6     Chairman Anthony Long, Commission Member Suzannah



      7     Wilson Overholt, and Commission Member Zachary



      8     Klutz.



      9          I believe we also have online the Indiana



     10     Election Division staff, Co-Director Brad King and



     11     Co-Director Angie Nussmeyer along with Co-General



     12     Counsels Matthew Kochevar and Valerie Warycha.



     13          I also recognize that we have our court



     14     reporter from Stewart Richardson Deposition



     15     Services, Maria Collier.



     16          And before we continue on, obviously this is a



     17     different forum.  We've not done this before, at



     18     least not in my tenure as chair, so a couple of



     19     ground rules here.



     20          Just like in a public meeting, I want to



     21     remind everyone on behalf of our court reporter



     22     that, when you jump in, you need to identify



     23     yourself by first and last name and spell that out



     24     for her.  There might be a little bit of lag time



     25     there for her, so she's going to want to catch up.
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      1     I believe she's going to leave herself unmuted, so



      2     please pay attention, if she jumps in and needs to



      3     clarify something for the record, that you yield to



      4     her.  Also, let's just try to keep the traffic



      5     lanes one way only and one person speaking at a



      6     time so that we can clearly get this on the record



      7     and hear each other well.



      8          Given that this is a virtual meeting which is



      9     open to the public, everyone listening will be



     10     muted to avoid those background and noise issues



     11     otherwise so we can conduct an orderly meeting, and



     12     only when you're recognized by the chair will you



     13     be speaking.



     14          Before we get to the business of the day, I'd



     15     just like to offer a right of personal privilege



     16     and make a few comments, and I'll offer the same to



     17     my counterpart, Mr. Long.



     18          Obviously, we're in unprecedented territory.



     19     We face a lot of challenges, and I just want to say



     20     how comforted I am in seeing both major political



     21     parties come together, find some consensus, join in



     22     communication to the Election Commission together.



     23     There's a lot to be mindful of and to think through



     24     during these tumultuous times, but to know that the



     25     parties can largely set aside any differences and
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      1     try to do what's best for Hoosier voters in



      2     agreement, I think, is -- well, Indiana is an



      3     exceptional place for that purpose.  And we've



      4     always been able to come together and rise above,



      5     and I just wanted to acknowledge that, especially



      6     with respect to Chairman Zody and Chairman Hupfer



      7     and just working together to put their differences



      8     aside so that we could find some common ground.



      9          And, Vice Chairman Long, if you'd like to



     10     offer any opening comment, I'd certainly offer you



     11     that opportunity before we move on.



     12          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I appreciate that very



     13     much, Mr. Chairman.  I would echo your comments and



     14     observations.  I think the thing that has heartened



     15     me as much as anything in this measure is there



     16     were certain founded legal positions that each side



     17     had taken that were contrary.  We were able,



     18     through our representatives, to allow those



     19     positions to be respected that were not conceding,



     20     neither side conceding their position as to who has



     21     the authority relative to this.



     22          I think you're aware that the Democrats had



     23     taken the position that this is a jurisdictional



     24     issue that should be resolved by this body, the



     25     Election Commission.  The Governor and, of course,
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      1     his staff and legal advisers believe that the



      2     authority rests with him, and we are respectful of



      3     that position.



      4          I think the thing that is most heartening is



      5     we are able to say to you today that we're not



      6     asking you or the Governor or the Secretary of



      7     State to concede the correctness of our position or



      8     that we're conceding the correctness of their



      9     positions, but that we really recognize that, if



     10     all of us reach an agreement on the same goal,



     11     which I feel certain we will here today, that we've



     12     accomplished the bigger, broader purpose of serving



     13     the citizens of our state.



     14          I think there's a letter before you from Karen



     15     Celestino Horseman from the party.  At some point



     16     we'll ask that that be considered a part of the



     17     record.



     18          We're voting and moving forward, then, today



     19     with the understanding that we believe that the



     20     Governor is duly elected executive of the State and



     21     that he has entered an executive order relative to



     22     the conduct of the primary election.  We believe



     23     that the Commission will do a similar order today.



     24     And between the two of us, I'm sure, if one has to



     25     be right and the other one wrong, we're going to
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      1     accomplish what the citizens are entitled to.



      2          Obviously the record would reflect that the



      3     Commission is an appointed, bipartisan, four-member



      4     body appointed by the Governor charged with the



      5     administration of the election laws.  We believe



      6     that the Election Commission and by our action



      7     today are exhibiting we have the power, after



      8     finding an emergency would make it impossible and



      9     unreasonable for persons to perform the duties or



     10     file documents specified in the Election Code, to



     11     extend the deadlines for that, and we can all



     12     accomplish the goal of having an orderly election.



     13          We believe and recognize with respect to the



     14     role of the Secretary of State, as identified as



     15     the state's chief election officer and election



     16     official, has duties that are prescribed and the



     17     limitation of the duties and responsibilities as by



     18     the code.



     19          We think that -- and I would agree with you.



     20     I have the advantage of being a member of this body



     21     for several years, and this is unprecedented.  This



     22     is an example, I believe, for all that have been



     23     maybe critical of the even split of the partisan



     24     membership on this body, that we traditionally rise



     25     above partisan concerns and are able to accomplish
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      1     the people's business.



      2          I am very pleased and I applaud, like you did,



      3     the chairman, both of the state parties.  I applaud



      4     and I thank the Governor and his staff and the



      5     Secretary and her staff.  And I offer sincere



      6     appreciation to the Division staff for all the



      7     tireless efforts that they have put in to make this



      8     work.  This has been truly a bipartisan operation,



      9     and I'm proud to be a part of it here today.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They've all been working



     11     around the clock.  Thank you for that.



     12          Moving on, I request that the Election



     13     Division co-counsel confirm that the public meeting



     14     has been notified properly.



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  This is Valerie, V-a-l-e-r-i-e,



     16     last name W-a-r-y-c-h-a.  The meeting was posted



     17     online at 3:00 p.m., approximately, yesterday to



     18     let people know how to do Zoom.  And then we also



     19     posted a hard copy notice outside the Election



     20     Division and the Secretary of State's Office.  And



     21     in addition, we sent notice to the media.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     23          Co-counsel Kochevar, do you have anything to



     24     add?



     25          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Mr. Chairman, Matthew Kochevar,
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      1     M-a-t-t-h-e-w, Kochevar, K-o-c-h-e-v-a-r,



      2     co-general counsel.  No, I have nothing to add on



      3     this point.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      5          Moving on, Item 3, Order 2020-37.  The



      6     Election Commission is meeting today to discuss an



      7     order and vote on an order that will allow the



      8     June 2, 2020, primary election to be conducted in



      9     the most orderly and accessible fashion possible



     10     based on what we know today.



     11          I move to adopt Order 2020-37, which has been



     12     posted on the Election Commission web page, can be



     13     found on the Secretary of State's site, and



     14     previously distributed to the Commission members.



     15     For purposes of discussion, is there a second to



     16     that motion?



     17          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Mr. Chairman, Anthony



     18     Long, and I would second that motion.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Long.



     20          This order addresses many issues, as we've



     21     been discussing, arising out of the Governor's



     22     order to suspend the statute setting the date of



     23     the primary as May 5, 2020, and rescheduling that



     24     election to June 2, 2020.  Order 2020-37 addresses



     25     the following subjects related to the rescheduled
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      1     primary election.  I will read through these for



      2     the record.



      3          Briefly, Section 1 and 2, this order applies



      4     to the entire state of Indiana and to everyone who



      5     has a responsibility to perform a duty related to



      6     the primary or the right to file a document related



      7     to that election.



      8          Section 3 moves all dates by 28 days.



      9          Section 4 avoids reprinting ballots and other



     10     forms that have the May 5, 2020, date.



     11          Section 5 allows everyone to cast an absentee



     12     ballot by mail without having a specific reason to



     13     do so.



     14          Section 6 grandfathers applications already



     15     received for an absentee ballot.  It should not



     16     state an excuse permitting the person to vote by



     17     mail.  This section also directs the Election



     18     Division to work with the Secretary of State to



     19     develop an online application for the upcoming



     20     primary, indianavoters.com, if possible.



     21          Section 7 permits county election boards to



     22     conduct meetings electronically rather than in



     23     person, just as we are doing so today.  This



     24     section also permits county election boards more



     25     efficiency in reviewing an absentee ballot
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      1     application.



      2          Section 8 encourages counties to appoint



      3     medical professionals to act as traveling absentee



      4     boards to help voters confined to medical



      5     facilities to cast a ballot.



      6          Section 9 provides special procedures for



      7     voters who are unable to physically mark and return



      8     their ballots.



      9          Section 10 permits family members and



     10     caregivers of a confined voter to personally



     11     deliver and return a ballot on their behalf.



     12          Section 11 provides flexibility to the county



     13     clerks regarding the location of the clerk's office



     14     for voting purposes.



     15          Sections 12 and 13 allow county election



     16     boards to consolidate voting locations and vote



     17     center sites and to take spacing measuring to



     18     ensure the safety of all voters.



     19          Section 14 loosens restrictions on students



     20     who wish to serve as poll workers or absentee board



     21     members.



     22          Section 15 allows county election boards to



     23     begin expeditiously counting ballots at 6:00 a.m.



     24     on election day.



     25          Section 16 advises county election boards that
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      1     election results must be determined by 3:00 p.m. on



      2     June 12th.



      3          Section 17 specifies that the Election



      4     Commission will meet on April 22nd, at 10:00 a.m.,



      5     to discuss moving to a vote by mail election if



      6     necessitated by the public health crisis and



      7     address any concerns related to conducting



      8     political party conventions.



      9          And Section 18, this order is effective



     10     immediately upon its passage.



     11          With that, I will recognize my colleagues on



     12     the board for any discussion.



     13          (No response.)



     14          Hearing none -- yes.  Please go ahead.  Sorry.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  One of the things that --



     16     I didn't want to capitalize on the speaking here



     17     today but afford other members an opportunity to



     18     address.



     19          One of the things that I have observed and



     20     tried to be very cognizant of through this is that



     21     we have not created something that will have



     22     unintended consequences.  I applaud the fact that



     23     we are going to have meetings on April 22nd -- or a



     24     hearing actually on April 22nd.



     25          And there are some issues that have been
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      1     raised by entities such as, well, the Indiana



      2     Citizen.  I had the pleasure to speak with my good



      3     friend Bill Moreau yesterday about the concerns



      4     they had and was happy to report that, with his



      5     interest and concern, we were able -- the new order



      6     addresses their biggest concern.



      7          We have received communications from



      8     third-party candidates that I think need to be duly



      9     addressed and considered to make sure we're not



     10     hampering them in any form or fashion.



     11          And we have received communication from the



     12     American Council of the Blind in Indiana that has



     13     prompted another review and thought on the issues



     14     of our citizen voters that have disabilities and



     15     need some accommodations that we can deal with.



     16     And I feel we will be able to recognize if we have



     17     created some consequences that maybe have not been



     18     fully addressed and be able to work with them and



     19     deal with them on the 22nd.



     20          But I believe that the platform that we have



     21     brought before the Commission here today in the



     22     form of this order is a tremendous step forward to



     23     an orderly movement of the election and the ability



     24     to have a mail-in-type voting procedure that is



     25     effectively administered.  I think we can learn
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      1     from that.  We'll get an opportunity to see how



      2     well the mail-in system works and what problems it



      3     will create, and I'm sure there will be some.  But



      4     if we have a rollout on this one that's been



      5     necessitated by conditions that are certainly



      6     outside of all of our controls, that we're going to



      7     at least have an opportunity to test the efficiency



      8     and efficacy of this in the future.



      9          So my position on this matter, and I want to



     10     make it very clear, that with the ability to go



     11     back and look at any shortcomings or consequences



     12     that we may have inadvertently created here, that



     13     this is a real good step, and I'm proud to have



     14     been a part of this bipartisan effort.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Vice Chairman



     16     Long.  I appreciate that.



     17          Any others?



     18          MR. KLUTZ:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The Chair recognizes Zach



     20     Klutz.



     21          MR. KLUTZ:  Sorry, Mr. Chairman.  If I may, I



     22     would just like to echo Chairman Long's comments.



     23     Let me just say this:  Moving an election is



     24     clearly not as simple as just saying it's going



     25     from May 5th to June 2nd.  And I really would like
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      1     to thank the Election Division staff, both sides of



      2     the aisle, Secretary of State Connie Lawson and her



      3     office.  This is a comprehensive order.  I support



      4     the order.  And it's as comprehensive as possible,



      5     I think, to ensure the most voter turnout while



      6     also protecting the health of the voters generally.



      7          We have received comments, some comments from



      8     interested parties, including election



      9     administrators.  And I encourage those election



     10     administrators and other interested parties on the



     11     line today to continue those comments coming in.



     12     We're meeting again April 22nd, so we'll certainly



     13     have the opportunity to, between now and then,



     14     review your comments.



     15          And I know changing an election date and also



     16     going to how an election is administered in terms



     17     of no-fault absentee creates challenges and



     18     requires changes, no different, though, than every



     19     other facet of society right now that is having to



     20     change how they operate and how they conduct or are



     21     operating business.  So I ask the election



     22     administrators, keep the comments coming.  Be



     23     patient.  Be flexible.  Be open-minded.  We



     24     understand that these changes will cause



     25     difficulties, but difficulties are being faced
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      1     everywhere.



      2          So that's my comment, and, again, I do support



      3     this order.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          Any other discussion?



      6          (No response.)



      7          Hearing none, we have a motion and a second.



      8     All those in favor signify by stating your name.



      9     We'll do a roll call vote, if that's okay.



     10          I'll start with you, Vice Chairman Long.



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Am I unmuted?



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I can hear you.



     13          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  You're aware I'm watching



     14     this on two venues.



     15          I vote for the motion and to approve the



     16     order.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Commission Member



     18     Klutz.



     19          MR. KLUTZ:  Mr. Chairman, I vote in favor.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Commission Member Suzannah



     21     Wilson Overholt.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  I vote in favor of the order.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  As Chair, I vote in favor of



     24     my own order, so we have a unanimous decision to



     25     pass the order.
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      1          Is there consent by the Commission members for



      2     the Election Division staff to sign this order with



      3     their signature stamps?



      4          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I give my consent.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  I give my consent.



      6          MR. KLUTZ:  I give my consent as well.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  And as it's been



      8     said in some of the comments section, I would like



      9     to acknowledge that we've received some requests



     10     for input from the public, and some of them have



     11     been mentioned.  I'll just go through the list that



     12     I'm aware of.  There may be others, so forgive me.



     13     But should you be interested in seeing this



     14     commentary or desire to input, I would refer you to



     15     the Election Division staff.



     16          But in no particular order, I know we've heard



     17     from the Indiana Green Party, the American



     18     Federation for the Blind, the Indiana Disability



     19     Rights Foundation, the Indiana Democratic party,



     20     the Indiana Citizen, and the Tippecanoe County



     21     board and election staff.  And there may be others,



     22     but, again, we will refer you to the Election



     23     Division to get access to that information.



     24          As Vice Chairman Long noted, we are meeting



     25     again April 22nd, so we welcome any comments from
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      1     the public.  If you'd like to submit a comment to



      2     the Election Commission, please submit your



      3     comments in writing to elections -- that's



      4     e-l-e-c-t-i-o-n-s -- @iec.in.gov by April 10, 2020.



      5     This will give the Commission time to review any



      6     and all comments prior to that meeting on the 22nd.



      7          With that, I believe we've concluded business



      8     for today.  Do I have a motion --



      9          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Chairman?



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Chairman, this is Suzannah



     12     Overholt.  Prior to adjourning, I was wondering if



     13     we could discuss some possible issues for



     14     consideration at the April 22nd meeting or is that



     15     something we need to defer and have the division



     16     staff contemplate those prior to that meeting?



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's the latter,



     18     Commissioner Overholt.  I appreciate that, but yes.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do I have a motion for the



     21     Indiana Election Commission to adjourn?



     22          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  So moved.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     24          MR. KLUTZ:  Second.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All those in favor?
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      1          THE COMMISSION:  Aye.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it, and the



      3     meeting is adjourned.  Thank you all for your



      4     participation today.



      5          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      6     Session was adjourned at 10:23 a.m.)
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF HAMILTON



      3          I, Maria W. Collier, a Notary Public in and



      4  for said county and state, do hereby certify that the



      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 10:00 a.m. and



      7  10:23 a.m.;



      8          That said public session was taken down in



      9  stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewriting



     10  under my direction; and that the typewritten



     11  transcript is a true record of the public session;



     12          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     13  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 26th day of



     14  March, 2020.
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